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Subpart F—Procedures 

§ 3.600 Notice of covered programs. 
Within 60 days of September 29, 2000, 

each Federal agency that awards Fed-
eral financial assistance shall publish 
in the FEDERAL REGISTER a notice of 
the programs covered by these Title IX 
regulations. Each such Federal agency 
shall periodically republish the notice 
of covered programs to reflect changes 
in covered programs. Copies of this no-
tice also shall be made available upon 
request to the Federal agency’s office 
that enforces Title IX. 

§ 3.605 Enforcement procedures. 
The investigative, compliance, and 

enforcement procedural provisions of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
(42 U.S.C. 2000d) (‘‘Title VI’’) are hereby 
adopted and applied to these Title IX 
regulations. These procedures may be 
found at 24 CFR part 1. 

[65 FR 52880, Aug. 30, 2000] 

PART 4—HUD REFORM ACT 

Subpart A—Accountability in the Provision 
of HUD Assistance 

Sec. 
4.1 Purpose. 
4.3 Definitions. 
4.5 Notice and documentation of assistance 

subject to section 102(a). 
4.7 Notice of funding decisions. 
4.9 Disclosure requirements for assistance 

subject to section 102(b). 
4.11 Updating of disclosure. 
4.13 Limitation of assistance subject to sec-

tion 102(d). 

Subpart B—Prohibition of Advance 
Disclosure of Funding Decisions 

4.20 Purpose. 
4.22 Definitions. 
4.24 Scope. 
4.26 Permissible and impermissible disclo-

sures. 
4.28 Civil penalties. 
4.30 Procedure upon discovery of a viola-

tion. 
4.32 Investigation by Office of Inspector 

General. 
4.34 Review of Inspector General’s report by 

the Ethics Law Division. 
4.36 Action by the Ethics Law Division. 
4.38 Administrative remedies. 

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 3535(d), 3537a, 3545. 

SOURCE: 61 FR 14449, Apr. 1, 1996, unless 
otherwise noted. 

Subpart A—Accountability in the 
Provision of HUD Assistance 

§ 4.1 Purpose. 

The provisions of this subpart A are 
authorized under section 102 of the De-
partment of Housing and Urban Devel-
opment Reform Act of 1989 (Pub. L. 
101–235, approved December 15, 1989) (42 
U.S.C. 3537a) (hereinafter, Section 102). 
Both the provisions of Section 102 and 
this subpart A apply for the purposes of 
Section 102. Section 102 contains a 
number of provisions designed to en-
sure greater accountability and integ-
rity in the way in which the Depart-
ment makes assistance available under 
certain of its programs. 

§ 4.3 Definitions. 

Applicant includes a person whose ap-
plication for assistance must be sub-
mitted to HUD for any purpose includ-
ing approval, environmental review, or 
rent determination. 

Assistance under any program or discre-
tionary fund administered by the Sec-
retary is subject to Section 102(a), and 
means any assistance, under any pro-
gram administered by the Department, 
that provides by statute, regulation or 
otherwise for the competitive distribu-
tion of funding. 

Assistance within the jurisdiction of the 
Department is subject to Section 102(b), 
and means any contract, grant, loan, 
cooperative agreement, or other form 
of assistance, including the insurance 
or guarantee of a loan or mortgage, 
that is provided with respect to a spe-
cific project or activity under a pro-
gram administered by the Department, 
whether or not it is awarded through a 
competitive process. 

Assistance within the jurisdiction of the 
Department to any housing project is sub-
ject to Section 102(d), and means: 

(1) Assistance which is provided di-
rectly by HUD to any person or entity, 
but not to subrecipients. It includes as-
sistance for the acquisition, rehabilita-
tion, operation conversion, moderniza-
tion, renovation, or demolition of any 
property containing five or more dwell-
ing units that is to be used primarily 
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for residential purposes. It includes as-
sistance to independent group resi-
dences, board and care facilities, group 
homes and transitional housing but 
does not include primarily nonresiden-
tial facilities such as intermediate care 
facilities, nursing homes and hospitals. 
It also includes any change requested 
by a recipient in the amount of assist-
ance previously provided, except 
changes resulting from annual adjust-
ments in Section 8 rents under Section 
8(c)(2)(A) of the United States Housing 
Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f); 

(2) Assistance to residential rental 
property receiving a tax credit under 
Federal, State or local law. 

(3) For purposes of this definition, as-
sistance includes assistance resulting 
from annual adjustments in Section 8 
rents under Section 8(c)(2)(A) of the 
United States Housing Act of 1937, un-
less the initial assistance was made 
available before April 15, 1991, and no 
other assistance subject to this subpart 
A was made available on or after that 
date. 

Housing project means: (1) Property 
containing five or more dwelling units 
that is to be used for primarily residen-
tial purposes, including (but not lim-
ited to) living arrangements such as 
independent group residences, board 
and care facilities, group homes, and 
transitional housing, but excluding fa-
cilities that provide primarily non-res-
idential services, such as intermediate 
care facilities, nursing homes, and hos-
pitals. 

(2) Residential rental property re-
ceiving a tax credit under Federal, 
State, or local law. 

Interested party means any person in-
volved in the application for assist-
ance, or in the planning, development 
or implementation of the project or ac-
tivity for which assistance is sought 
and any other person who has a pecu-
niary interest exceeding the lower of 
$50,000 or 10 percent in the project or 
activity for which assistance is sought. 

Selection criteria includes, in addition 
to any objective measures of housing 
and other need, project merit, or effi-
cient use of resources, the weight or 
relative importance of each published 
selection criterion as well as any other 
factors that may affect the selection of 
recipients. 

§ 4.5 Notice and documentation of as-
sistance subject to section 102(a). 

(a) Notice. Before the Department so-
licits an application for assistance sub-
ject to Section 102(a), it will publish a 
Notice in the FEDERAL REGISTER de-
scribing application procedures. Not 
less than 30 calendar days before the 
deadline by which applications must be 
submitted, the Department will publish 
selection criteria in the FEDERAL REG-
ISTER. 

(b) Documentation of decisions. HUD 
will make available for public inspec-
tion, for at least five (5) years, and be-
ginning not less than 30 calendars days 
after it provides the assistance, all doc-
umentation and other information re-
garding the basis for the funding deci-
sion with respect to each application 
submitted to HUD for assistance. HUD 
will also make available any written 
indication of support that it received 
from any applicant. Recipients of HUD 
assistance must ensure, in accordance 
with HUD guidance, the public avail-
ability of similar information sub-
mitted by subrecipients of HUD assist-
ance. 

§ 4.7 Notice of funding decisions. 

HUD will publish a Notice in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER at least quarterly 
to notify the public of all decisions 
made by the Department to provide: 

(a) Assistance subject to Section 
102(a); and 

(b) Assistance that is provided 
through grants or cooperative agree-
ments on a discretionary (non-formula, 
non-demand) basis, but that is not pro-
vided on the basis of a competition. 

§ 4.9 Disclosure requirements for as-
sistance subject to section 102(b). 

(a) Receipt and reasonable expectation 
of receipt. (1) In determining the thresh-
old of applicability of Section 102(b), an 
applicant will be deemed to have re-
ceived or to have a reasonable expecta-
tion of receiving: 

(i) The total amount of assistance re-
ceived during the Federal fiscal year 
during which the application was sub-
mitted; 

(ii) The total amount of assistance 
requested for the fiscal year in which 
any pending application, including the 
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current application, was submitted; 
and 

(iii) For the fiscal year described in 
paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section, the 
total amount of assistance from the 
Department or any other entity that is 
likely to be made available on a for-
mula basis or in the form of program 
income as defined in 24 CFR part 85. 

(2) In the case of assistance that will 
be provided pursuant to contract over a 
period of time (such as project-based 
assistance under Section 8 of the 
United States Housing Act of 1937), all 
amounts that are to be provided over 
the term of the contract, irrespective 
of when they are to be received. 

(b) Content of disclosure. Applicants 
that receive or can reasonably be ex-
pected to receive, as defined in para-
graph (a) of this section, an aggregate 
amount of assistance that is in excess 
of $200,000 must disclose the following 
information: 

(1) Other governmental assistance 
that is or is expected to be made avail-
able, based upon a reasonable assess-
ment of the circumstances, with re-
spect to the project or activities for 
which the assistance is sought; 

(2) The name and pecuniary interest 
of any interested party; and 

(3) A report of the expected sources 
and uses of funds for the project or ac-
tivity which is the subject of the appli-
cation, including governmental and 
non-governmental sources of funds and 
private capital resulting from tax ben-
efits. 

(c) In the case of mortgage insurance 
under 24 CFR subtitle B, chapter II, the 
mortgagor is responsible for making 
the disclosures required under Section 
102(b) and this section, and the mort-
gagee is responsible for furnishing the 
mortgagor’s disclosures to the Depart-
ment. 

(Approved by the Office of Management and 
Budget under control number 2510–0011) 

§ 4.11 Updating of disclosure. 

(a) During the period in which an ap-
plication for assistance covered under 
Section 102(b) is pending, or in which 
such assistance is being provided, the 
applicant must report to the Depart-
ment, or to the State or unit of general 
local government, as appropriate: 

(1) Any information referred to in 
Section 102(b) that the applicant 
should have disclosed with respect to 
the application, but did not disclose; 

(2) Any information referred to in 
Section 102(b) that initially arose after 
the time for making disclosures under 
that subsection, including the name 
and pecuniary interest of any person 
who did not have a pecuniary interest 
in the project or activity that exceeded 
the threshold in Section 102(b) at the 
time of the application, but that subse-
quently exceeded the threshold. 

(b) With regard to changes in infor-
mation that was disclosed under Sec-
tions 102(b) or 102(c): 

(1) For programs administered by the 
Assistant Secretary for Community 
Planning and Development: 

(i) Any change in other government 
assistance covered by Section 102(b) 
that exceeds the amount of all assist-
ance that was previously disclosed by 
the lesser of $250,000 or 10 percent of 
the assistance; 

(ii) Any change in the expected 
sources or uses of funds that exceed the 
amount of all previously disclosed 
sources or uses by the lesser of $250,000 
or 10 percent of previously disclosed 
sources; 

(2) For all other programs: 
(i) Any change in other government 

assistance under Section 102(b)(1) that 
exceeds the amount of assistance that 
was previously disclosed; 

(ii) Any change in the pecuniary in-
terest of any person under Section 
102(b)(2) that exceeds the amount of all 
previously disclosed interests by the 
lesser of $50,000 or 10 percent of such in-
terest; 

(iii) For all projects receiving a tax 
credit under Federal, Sate or local law, 
any change in the expected sources or 
uses of funds that were previously dis-
closed; 

(iv) For all other projects: 
(A) Any change in the expected 

source of funds from a single source 
that exceeds the lesser of the amount 
previously disclosed for that source of 
funds by $250,000 or 10 percent of the 
funds previously disclosed for that 
source; 
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(B) Any change in the expected 
sources of funds from all sources pre-
viously disclosed that exceeds the less-
er of $250,000 or 10 percent of the 
amounts previously disclosed from all 
sources of funds; 

(C) Any change in a single expected 
use of funds that exceeds the lesser of 
$250,000 or 10 percent of the previously 
disclosed use; 

(D) Any change in the use of all funds 
that exceeds the lesser of $250,000 or 10 
percent of the previously disclosed uses 
for all funds. 

(c) Period of coverage. For purposes of 
updating of Section 102(c), an applica-
tion for assistance will be considered to 
be pending from the time the applica-
tion is submitted until the Department 
communicates its decision with respect 
to the selection of the applicant. 

(Approved by the Office of Management and 
Budget under control number 2510–0011) 

§ 4.13 Limitation of assistance subject 
to section 102(d). 

(a) In making the certification for as-
sistance subject to Section 102(d), the 
Secretary will consider the aggregate 
amount of assistance from the Depart-
ment and from other sources that is 
necessary to ensure the feasibility of 
the assisted activity. The Secretary 
will take into account all factors rel-
evant to feasibility, which may in-
clude, but are not limited to, past rates 
of returns for owners, sponsors, and in-
vestors; the long-term needs of the 
project and its tenants; and the usual 
and customary fees charged in carrying 
out the assisted activity. 

(b) If the Department determines 
that the aggregate of assistance within 
the jurisdiction of the Department to a 
housing project from the Department 
and from other governmental sources 
exceeds the amount that the Secretary 
determines is necessary to make the 
assisted activity feasible, the Depart-
ment will consider all options available 
to enable it to make the required cer-
tification, including reductions in the 
amount of Section 8 subsidies. The De-
partment also may impose a dollar-for- 
dollar, or equivalent, reduction in the 
amount of HUD assistance to offset the 
amount of other government assist-
ance. In grant programs, this could re-
sult in a reduction of any grant 

amounts not yet drawn down. The De-
partment may make these adjustments 
immediately, or in conjunction with 
servicing actions anticipated to occur 
in the near future (e.g., in conjunction 
with the next annual adjustment of 
Section 8 rents). 

(c) If an applicant does not meet the 
$200,000 disclosure requirement in 
§ 4.7(b), an applicant must certify 
whether there is, or is expected to be 
made, available with respect to the 
housing project any other govern-
mental assistance. The Department 
may also require any applicant subject 
to this subpart A to submit such a cer-
tification in conjunction with the De-
partment’s processing of any subse-
quent servicing action on that project. 
If there is other government assistance 
for purposes of the two preceding sen-
tences, the applicant must submit such 
information as the Department deems 
necessary to make the certification 
and subsequent adjustments under Sec-
tion 102(d). 

(d) The certification under Section 
102(d) shall be retained in the official 
file for the housing project. 

Subpart B—Prohibition of Advance 
Disclosure of Funding Decisions 

§ 4.20 Purpose. 
The provisions of this subpart B are 

authorized under section 103 of the De-
partment of Housing and Urban Devel-
opment Reform Act of 1989 (Pub. L. 
101–235, approved December 15, 1989) (42 
U.S.C. 3537a) (hereinafter, Section 103). 
Both the provisions of Section 103 and 
this subpart B apply for the purposes of 
Section 103. Section 103 proscribes di-
rect or indirect communication of cer-
tain information during the selection 
process by HUD employees to persons 
within or outside of the Department 
who are not authorized to receive that 
information. The purpose of the pro-
scription is to preclude giving an un-
fair advantage to applicants who would 
receive information not available to 
other applicants or to the public. Sec-
tion 103 also authorizes the Depart-
ment to impose a civil money penalty 
on a HUD employee who knowingly dis-
closes protected information, if such a 
violation of Section 103 is material, 
and authorizes the Department to 
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sanction the person who received infor-
mation improperly by, among other 
things, denying assistance to that per-
son. 

§ 4.22 Definitions. 

Application means a written request 
for assistance regardless of whether the 
request is in proper form or format. 

Assistance does not include any con-
tract (e.g., a procurement contract) 
that is subject to the Federal Acquisi-
tion Regulation (FAR) (48 CFR ch. 1). 

Disclose means providing information 
directly or indirectly to a person 
through any means of communication. 

Employee includes persons employed 
on a full-time, part-time, or temporary 
basis, and special government employ-
ees as defined in 18 U.S.C. 202. The term 
applies whether or not the employee is 
denoted as an officer of the Depart-
ment. ‘‘Employee’’ is to be construed 
broadly to include persons who are re-
tained on a contractual or consultative 
basis under an Office of Human Re-
sources appointment. However, ‘‘em-
ployee’’ does not include an inde-
pendent contractor, e.g., a firm or indi-
vidual working under the authority of 
a procurement contract. 

Material or materially means in some 
influential or substantial respect or 
having to do more with substance than 
with form. 

Person means an individual, corpora-
tion, company, association, authority, 
firm, partnership, society, State, local 
government, or any other organization 
or group of people. 

Selection process means the period 
with respect to a selection for assist-
ance that begins when the HUD official 
responsible for awarding the assistance 
involved, or his or her designee, makes 
a written request (which includes the 
selection criteria to be used in pro-
viding the assistance) to the Office of 
General Counsel (OGC) to prepare the 
NOFA, solicitation, or request for ap-
plications for assistance for publica-
tion in the FEDERAL REGISTER. The pe-
riod includes the evaluation of applica-
tions, and concludes with the an-
nouncement of the selection of recipi-
ents of assistance. 

§ 4.24 Scope. 

(a) Coverage. The prohibitions against 
improper disclosure of covered selec-
tion information apply to any person 
who is an employee of the Department. 
In addition, the Department will re-
quire any other person who partici-
pates at the invitation of the Depart-
ment in the selection process to sign a 
certification that he or she will be 
bound by the provisions of this part. 

(b) Applicability. The prohibitions 
contained in this part apply to conduct 
occurring on or after June 12, 1991. 

§ 4.26 Permissible and impermissible 
disclosures. 

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of 
Section 103, an employee is permitted 
to disclose information during the se-
lection process with respect to: 

(1) The requirements of a HUD pro-
gram or programs, including unpub-
lished policy statements and the provi-
sion of technical assistance concerning 
program requirements, provided that 
the requirements or statements are 
disclosed on a uniform basis to any ap-
plicant or potential applicant. For pur-
poses of this part, the term ‘‘technical 
assistance’’ includes such activities as 
explaining and responding to questions 
about program regulations, defining 
terms in an application package, and 
providing other forms of technical 
guidance that may be described in a 
NOFA. The term ‘‘technical assist-
ance’’ also includes identification of 
those parts of an application that need 
substantive improvement, but this 
term does not include advising the ap-
plicant how to make those improve-
ments. 

(2) The dates by which particular de-
cisions in the selection process will be 
made; 

(3) Any information which has been 
published in the FEDERAL REGISTER in 
a NOFA or otherwise; 

(4) Any information which has been 
made public through means other than 
the FEDERAL REGISTER; 

(5) An official audit, inquiry or inves-
tigation, if the disclosure is made to an 
auditor or investigator authorized by 
the HUD Inspector General to conduct 
the audit or investigation; 
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(6) Legal activities, including litiga-
tion, if the disclosure is made to an at-
torney who is representing or is other-
wise responsible to the Department in 
connection with the activities; or 

(7) Procedures that are required to be 
performed to process an application, 
e.g., environmental or budget reviews, 
and technical assistance from experts 
in fields who are regularly employed by 
other government agencies, provided 
that the agency with which the expert 
is employed or associated is not an ap-
plicant for HUD assistance during the 
pending funding cycle. 

(b) An authorized employee, during 
the selection process, may contact an 
applicant for the purpose of: 

(1) Communication of the applicant’s 
failure to qualify, after a preliminary 
review for eligibility and completeness 
with respect to his or her application, 
and the reasons for the failure to qual-
ify, or the fact of the applicant’s fail-
ure to be determined to be technically 
acceptable after a full review; or 

(2) Clarification of the terms of the 
applicant’s application. A clarification, 
for the purpose of this paragraph (b), 
may include a request for additional 
information consistent with regulatory 
requirements. 

(c) Prohibition of advance disclosure 
of funding decisions. During the selec-
tion process an employee shall not 
knowingly disclose any covered selec-
tion information regarding the selec-
tion process to any person other than 
an employee authorized to receive that 
information. 

(1) The following disclosures of infor-
mation are, at any time during the se-
lection process, a violation of Section 
103: 

(i) Information regarding any appli-
cant’s relative standing; 

(ii) The amount of assistance re-
quested by any applicant; 

(iii) Any information contained in an 
application; 

(2) The following disclosures of infor-
mation, before the deadline for the sub-
mission of applications, shall be a vio-
lation of Section 103: 

(i) The identity of any applicant; and 
(ii) The number of applicants. 

§ 4.28 Civil penalties. 

Whenever any employee knowingly 
and materially violates the prohibition 
in Section 103, the Department may 
impose a civil money penalty on the 
employee in accordance with the provi-
sions of 24 CFR part 30. 

§ 4.30 Procedure upon discovery of a 
violation. 

(a) In general. When an alleged viola-
tion of Section 103 or this subpart B 
comes to the attention of any person, 
including an employee, he or she may 
either: 

(1) Contact the HUD Ethics Law Divi-
sion to provide information about the 
alleged violation; or 

(2) Contact the HUD Office of Inspec-
tor General to request an inquiry or in-
vestigation into the matter. 

(b) Ethics Law Division. When the 
Ethics Law Division receives informa-
tion concerning an alleged violation of 
Section 103, it shall refer the matter to 
the Inspector General stating the facts 
of the alleged violation and requesting 
that the Inspector General make an in-
quiry or investigation into the matter. 

(c) Inspector General. When the In-
spector General receives information 
concerning an alleged violation of Sec-
tion 103 or this subpart B, he or she 
shall notify the Ethics Law Division 
when the Inspector General begins an 
inquiry or investigation into the mat-
ter. 

(d) Protection of employee complain-
ants. (1) No official of the Ethics Law 
Division, after receipt of information 
from an employee stating the facts of 
an alleged violation of this part, shall 
disclose the identity of the employee 
without the consent of that employee. 
The Inspector General, after receipt of 
information stating the facts of an al-
leged violation of this part, shall not 
disclose the identity of the employee 
who provided the information without 
the consent of that employee, unless 
the Inspector General determines that 
disclosure of the employee’s identity is 
unavoidable during the course of an in-
vestigation. However, any employee 
who knowingly reports a false alleged 
violation of this part is not so pro-
tected and may be subject to discipli-
nary action. 

VerDate Nov<24>2008 14:40 May 12, 2009 Jkt 217077 PO 00000 Frm 00046 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\217077.XXX 217077dw
as

hi
ng

to
n3

 o
n 

P
R

O
D

1P
C

60
 w

ith
 C

F
R



37 

Office of the Secretary, HUD § 4.36 

(2) Any employee who has authority 
to take, direct others to take, rec-
ommend or approve a personnel action 
is prohibited from threatening, taking, 
failing to take, recommending, or ap-
proving any personnel action as re-
prisal against another employee for 
providing information to investigating 
officials. 

§ 4.32 Investigation by Office of In-
spector General. 

The Office of Inspector General shall 
review every alleged violation of Sec-
tion 103. If after a review the Office of 
Inspector General determines that fur-
ther investigation is not warranted, it 
shall notify the Ethics Law Division of 
that determination. If, after a review, 
the Office of Inspector General deter-
mines that additional investigation is 
warranted, it shall conduct the inves-
tigation and upon completion issue a 
report of the investigation to the Eth-
ics Law Division as to each alleged vio-
lation. 

§ 4.34 Review of Inspector General’s 
report by the Ethics Law Division. 

After receipt of the Inspector Gen-
eral’s report, the Ethics Law Division 
shall review the facts and cir-
cumstances of the alleged violations. 
In addition, the Ethics Law Division 
may: 

(a) Return the report to the Inspector 
General with a request for further in-
vestigation; 

(b) Discuss the violation with the em-
ployee alleged to have committed the 
violation; or 

(c) Interview any other person, in-
cluding employees who it believes will 
be helpful in furnishing information 
relevant to the inquiry. 

§ 4.36 Action by the Ethics Law Divi-
sion. 

(a) After review of the Inspector Gen-
eral’s report, the Ethics Law Division 
shall determine whether or not there is 
sufficient information providing a rea-
sonable basis to believe that a viola-
tion of Section 103 or this subpart B 
has occurred. 

(b) If the Ethics Law Division deter-
mines that there is no reasonable basis 
to believe that a violation of Section 
103 or this subpart B has occurred, it 

shall close the matter and send its de-
termination to the Office of Inspector 
General. 

(c) If the Ethics Law Division deter-
mines that there is sufficient informa-
tion to provide a reasonable basis to 
believe that a violation of Section 103 
or this subpart B has occurred, it shall: 

(1) Send its determination to the Of-
fice of Inspector General; and 

(2) Refer the matter to the appro-
priate official for review as to whether 
to impose a civil money penalty in ac-
cordance with 24 CFR part 30; provided, 
however, that the Ethics Law Division 
shall not make a civil money penalty 
recommendation unless it finds the 
violation to have been knowing and 
material. The decision to impose a 
civil money penalty in a particular 
matter may be made only upon referral 
from the Ethics Law Division. 

(d) In determining whether a viola-
tion is material, the Ethics Law Divi-
sion shall consider the following fac-
tors, as applicable: 

(1) The content of the disclosure and 
its significance to the person to whom 
the disclosure was made; 

(2) The time during the selection 
process when the disclosure was made; 

(3) The person to whom the disclo-
sure was made; 

(4) The dollar amount of assistance 
requested by the person to whom the 
disclosure was made; 

(5) The dollar amount of assistance 
available for a given competition or 
program; 

(6) The benefit, if any, received or ex-
pected by the employee, the employee’s 
relatives or friends, or any other per-
son with whom the employee is affili-
ated; 

(7) The potential injury to the De-
partment. 

(e) If the Ethics Law Division deter-
mines that there is sufficient informa-
tion to provide a reasonable basis to 
believe that a violation of Section 103 
or this subpart B has occurred, it may, 
in addition to referring the matter 
under 24 CFR part 30, refer the matter 
to an appropriate HUD official for con-
sideration of any other available dis-
ciplinary action. Any referral author-
ized by this paragraph (e) shall be re-
ported to the Inspector General and 
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may be reported to the employee’s su-
pervisor. 

§ 4.38 Administrative remedies. 
(a) If the Department receives or ob-

tains information providing a reason-
able basis to believe that a violation of 
Section 103 has occurred, the Depart-
ment may impose a sanction, as deter-
mined to be appropriate, upon an appli-
cant for or a recipient of assistance 
who has received covered selection in-
formation. 

(b) In determining whether a sanc-
tion is appropriate and if so which 
sanction or sanctions should be sought, 
the Secretary shall give consideration 
to the applicant’s conduct with respect 
to the violation. In so doing, the Sec-
retary shall consider the factors listed 
at § 4.36(d), as well as any history of 
prior violations in any HUD program, 
the benefits received or expected, de-
terrence of future violations and the 
extent of any complicity in the viola-
tion. 

(c) The Secretary may impose a sanc-
tion authorized by this section whether 
or not the Ethics Law Division refers a 
case under 24 CFR part 30, and whether 
or not a civil money penalty is im-
posed. 

PART 5—GENERAL HUD PROGRAM 
REQUIREMENTS; WAIVERS 

Subpart A—Generally Applicable Defini-
tions and Federal Requirements; Waiv-
ers 

Sec. 
5.100 Definitions. 
5.105 Other Federal requirements. 
5.107 Audit requirements for non-profit or-

ganizations. 
5.108 Preservation of Open Competition and 

Government Neutrality Towards Govern-
ment Contractors’ Labor Relations on 
Federally Funded Construction Projects. 

5.109 Equal Participation of Religious Orga-
nizations in HUD Programs and Activi-
ties. 

5.110 Waivers. 

Subpart B—Disclosure and Verification of 
Social Security Numbers and Employer 
Identification Numbers; Procedures for 
Obtaining Income Information 

5.210 Purpose, applicability, and Federal 
preemption. 

5.212 Compliance with the Privacy Act and 
other requirements. 

5.214 Definitions. 

DISCLOSURE AND VERIFICATION OF SOCIAL SE-
CURITY NUMBERS AND EMPLOYER IDENTI-
FICATION NUMBERS FOR APPLICANTS AND 
PARTICIPANTS IN CERTAIN HUD PROGRAMS 

5.216 Disclosure and verification of Social 
Security and Employer Identification 
Numbers. 

5.218 Penalties for failing to disclose and 
verify Social Security and Employer 
Identification Numbers. 

PROCEDURES FOR OBTAINING INCOME INFORMA-
TION ABOUT APPLICANTS AND PARTICI-
PANTS 

5.230 Consent by assistance applicants and 
participants. 

5.232 Penalties for failing to sign consent 
forms. 

5.233 Mandated use of HUD’s Enterprise In-
come Verification (EIV) system. 

5.234 Requests for information from 
SWICAs and Federal agencies; restric-
tions on use. 

5.236 Procedures for termination, denial, 
suspension, or reduction of assistance 
based on information obtained from a 
SWICA or Federal agency. 

5.238 Criminal and civil penalties. 
5.240 Family disclosure of income informa-

tion to the responsible entity and 
verification. 

Subpart C—Pet Ownership for the Elderly 
or Persons With Disabilities 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

5.300 Purpose. 
5.303 Exclusion for animals that assist, 

support, or provide service to persons 
with disabilities. 

5.306 Definitions. 
5.309 Prohibition against discrimination. 
5.312 Notice to tenants. 
5.315 Content of pet rules: General require-

ments. 
5.318 Discretionary pet rules. 
5.321 Lease provisions. 
5.324 Implementation of lease provisions. 
5.327 Nuisance or threat to health or safety. 

PET OWNERSHIP REQUIREMENTS FOR HOUSING 
PROGRAMS 

5.350 Mandatory pet rules for housing pro-
grams. 

5.353 Housing programs: Procedure for de-
velopment of pet rules. 

5.356 Housing programs: Pet rule violation 
procedures. 

5.359 Housing programs: Rejection of units 
by applicants for tenancy. 

5.360 Housing programs: Additional lease 
provisions. 

5.363 Housing programs: Protection of the 
pet. 
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